# Commissioning Enphase Energy System with storage using Enphase Installer App 4.XX

#### Contents

1	Applicable countries							
2	Overview							
3	Preparing the Enphase Installer App communications							
4	Commissioning instructions for non-backup storage configuration7							
	4.1	System Details (Step 1)	7					
	4.2	Devices and Configuration (Step 2a)	8					
	4.3	Site Configuration (Step 2b)	10					
	4.3.1	Adding the Maximum Import Limit/Grid Interconnection Capacity	10					
	4.4	IQ Gateway Connectivity (Step 3)	11					
	4.5	Device Provisioning (Step 4)	12					
	4.6	Validation (Step 5)	13					
	4.6.1	IQ Relay validation	13					
	4.6.2	2 Meter configuration	14					
	4.6.3	IQ Battery Phase Validation (If applicable)	16					
	4.6.4	Functional validation	17					
	4.6.5	5 Permit to operate instruction	18					
	4.6.6	S Summary report	19					
	4.7	Post Commissioning (Step 6)	19					
	4.7.1	Homeowner walkthrough	19					
	4.7.2	Access to the homeowner	19					
	4.7.3	Electricity rate structure						
	4.7.4	Profile	20					
	4.7.5	Battery	20					
5	Com	missioning instructions for backup storage configuration	21					
	5.1 Sy	ystem Details (Step 1)	21					
	5.2	Devices and Configuration (Step 2a)	21					
	5.3	Site Configuration (Step 2b)	22					
	5.4	IQ Gateway Connectivity (Step 3)	25					
	5.5	Device Provisioning (Step 4)	25					
	5.6	Validation (Step 5)	25					
	5.6.1	Meter configuration	25					

	5.6.2	2 Auxiliary contact validation
	5.6.3	IQ Battery Phase Validation27
	5.6.4	Functional validation27
	5.6.5	5 Summary report
5	.7	Post Commissioning (Step 6)
6	Com	missioning IQ Energy Router29
6	.1	Applicable countries
6	.2	Pre-commissioning process
6	.3	Commissioning process
7	Con	missioning IQ EV Charger
7.	1 C	ommissioning process
8	IQ G	ateway upgrade process
8	.1 D	ifferent states of IQ Battery
8	.2	Replacing an IQ Gateway onsite
8	.3	Replacing an IQ Battery onsite
9	Арр	endix
9	.1 A	opendix A: PLC Noise Detection
9	.2	Appendix B: Replacing/Decommissioning
9	.3	Appendix C: Steps to perform a power cycle of the IQ Battery 3T/10T38
10	Revi	sion history

# 1 Applicable countries

- Applicable countries (non-backup configuration):
  - o Germany
  - o Austria
  - o Belgium
  - o France
  - $\circ$  The Netherlands
  - o Switzerland
  - $\circ \quad \text{United Kingdom}$
  - $\circ$  Italy
  - o Luxembourg
  - o Sweden
  - $\circ$  Australia
  - o New Zealand
  - o Romania
  - o Czech Republic
- Applicable countries (backup configuration):
  - o Germany
  - o Austria
  - o Switzerland
  - o Australia
  - o New Zealand
  - o South Africa
  - o India

# 2 Overview

This document is intended for Enphase Energy System certified installation professionals commissioning Enphase Energy System in the field. This document provides steps and requirements for performing system commissioning of the Enphase Energy System. Perform the following steps to establish successful communication between Enphase Energy System components and validate that the system operates as designed.

# **3** Preparing the Enphase Installer App communications

Before commissioning:

- 1. Ensure the system is installed as per the installation manuals.
- 2. Commissioning requires an Enphase-certified installer to provision Enphase devices. For more information about Enphase installer certification, visit <u>Enphase University</u>.
- 3. Ensure that you have the latest version of the Enphase Installer App.



You can install the application using the following links:

- <u>iOS</u>
- Android

# ⊖ ENPHASE.



- 4. Enable Bluetooth communication on the smartphone or tablet you use for commissioning, and turn off your device's auto-lock feature to prevent interruptions in the commissioning process.
- 5. Download IQ Gateway software version 8.XX (or the latest available version) on the Enphase Installer App.
  - Go to Menu > Settings > IQ Gateway Software.
  - Tap the **Update Now** button to begin the IQ Gateway software update process. The update requires an internet connection. Make sure you have a reliable connection during the update.
  - When the IQ Gateway software is downloaded, the button will be turned off with a UP TO DATE message.

←	Settings		
IQ Ga	iteway Softwar	e	
Versio	n 05.00.62 Ø		
Last up	dated on 13 Feb 20:	23, 12:08 PM	
Versio	n 08.01.04 ①		
Last up	dated on 13 Feb 20	23, 12:17 PM	
	UP TO DATE		
Grid	Profiles		
Defau Austra Downl	It Profile: SMOKE Ilia A Region (1.3.2 loaded profiles: 53	TEST AS/NZS 4 2) 3	777.2: 2020
Last up	dated on 15 Feb 203	23, 12:41 PM	
	UP TO DATE	MANAG	E PROFILES
Auto	Download		
Enable	e Auto Download t	to keep up to da	ite
IQ Gat	leway Software		
	e ACB1.0/ ACB1.5	Battery installa	ition 🕐
Enable			
Enabl	==	2	=

 Click + on the bottom right of the dashboard. Tap Add System in the system menu. Use the Enphase Installer App to create a system activation. Enter the system details before onsite commissioning to save time and avoid mistakes. Alternatively, the site can be created on the Enphase Installer Portal by clicking + Add New System on the system dashboard.

ENPHASE EN	phase Ene	rgy				
ompany Performance So	corecard					
	1	0	(		E A	
Installing Exphase Since 01-Sep-08	Sites Commissioned 247 (Interference)	A404 ( 12 minute)	Batteries installed 195 (in acc2verva)	Net Promoter Score 29	Storage Authorized Installation Company Yes	
nnouncements						
arn how to send system	n access to your Homeov	vners through Enphase In	staller Portal. Click Here			
stems						
All Alerts (54645)	Activations (1551)					+ Add New S
Search	C					



- 7. If you are not the original installer of the system, you must be granted access to the activation as a system maintainer. To request system access:
  - Go to Support > Request System Access.
  - Enter the IQ Gateway serial number and submit the request.
  - An email will be sent to the homeowner to provide access to the site.



- 8. Alternatively, you can request access to the Enphase Installer Portal by:
  - a. Click Request System Access.

Benlighten Das Manager Das	hboard Systems Account 🛧		Data & Privacy 🗸			
Innhaaa En	Company Profile					
Enphase En	Branch Offices					
Ennhase	Users					
Platinum Installer	Service Areas					
A	Leads Preferences					
	Leads & Enphase Installer Network					
View EIN Dashboard	Training					
	Authorized Subcontractor					
Systems	Request System Access					
All Alerts (13330)	Activations (40231) Leads (	(363)				+ Add New Sy
Search	Q					
NAME / ID	STATUS			СІТҮ	STATE / PROV	
	Cateway Not Reporting	č.		-	-	
	Sateway Not Reporting				CA	
	😒 Gateway Not Reporting				CA	
	Storage Inactive				CA	
					CA	
	🗟 Gateway Not Reporting					
	Storage Inactive				1000 1000	

b. Copy the Request System Access URL and share it with the homeowner. The homeowner can then approve the System Access.

Enlighten Manager	Dashboard	Systems	Account 🛩						
Number Df Employe	en Domy Installetions <sup>4</sup>								Typical Installations (Per Year)
Typical Installa	tions (kW / Month)								Engenanie Strawe in Instantations."
Are You An SG	ilP Developer? 🔽	] ()							FERVEN ()
SGIP Developer Key									
Business Licen	ses								
ADD NEW LICEN	ISE								
Profile Links									
									Google Place ID
Telp Account L	ink (j)								Clink here to find your google place ID
									Rating: Reviews:
SolarReviews P	rofile Link 🕐								BBB Profile Link 💿
List of Reference Sy	stems								
https:/ Your reference list	m automatically upd	ates to show	vcase systems th	hat owners have	opted to share. Syster	ns listed have a	at least 100kW	h of lifetime energy	
Request System Act	cess								
https://	ac	count/confi	rm_access/						
Send this link to sy	stem owners to re	quest acces	is to their system	in Enlighten					
CANCEL	DATE ACCOUNT								



#### NOTE:

- IQ Batteries are shipped with approximately 30% state of charge from the manufacturer.
- The default operational mode is Self-Consumption.
- Enphase Installer App will change the battery mode to Full Backup mode after the commissioning till the battery calibration is completed in case of a backup system. The calibration will happen for the first time after the battery commissioning is completed.



#### **IMPORTANT:**

- Always follow the safety instructions provided in the Enphase installation manual and Quick Install Guide.
- After installation, IQ Batteries must always be connected to the AC supply.
- Once AC power is connected to the IQ Batteries, turn on the DC switch when instructed by the Enphase Installer App.

# 4 Commissioning instructions for non-backup storage configuration



**NOTE**: Some instructions or steps may only be relevant for system commissioning in some geographies.

To commission the Enphase Energy System, use the Enphase Installer App commissioning wizard. Open the Enphase Installer App and tap the **Systems** tab on the lower left side of the screen.

# 4.1 System Details (Step 1)

This step is part of an activation creation. This requires the following information:

- System name
- Type
- Installer details
- Owner details
- Address
- Grid connection type (if applicable)

Suppose the site activation is already completed on the Enphase Installer Portal. The site can be searched using the site name, site ID, postal code, city, installer reference, or IQ Gateway serial number.

< New System	m	⑦ Time left	Step 1 of 6: System Details	⑦ Time left
O Add system det	alls	0 <u></u>	Keep system and owner details at hand	-
1 System	Details	>	System Name *	
2 Devices	and Configuration		Installer Reference ID	0
3 IQ Gate	way Connectivity		Type of Installation * Residential	~
4 Device	Provisioning		Owner Details	
5 Validati	on		Third-party owned ( eg: PPA or leased )	G
6 Post Co	ommissioning		First Name * Last Name *	
			Email *	
Monitor		.∧r	+91 V Mobile Number *	
Airens	1 fan Statue	1 loss Mitrales		_
2	Add System Details		Next step: Add Devices	

Tap Next step: Add Devices to continue to the next step.

**NOTE**: Update the Permission to Operate (PTO) status on the System Details page. This setting helps to disable/enable power production based on PTO status.

# 4.2 Devices and Configuration (Step 2a)

This step allows the installer to populate all the devices that should be installed.

- Tap each device and use the and + buttons to decrease or increase the total count of the respective devices you are adding. Tap Next: Scan IQ Gateway.
- 2. You will be shown the respective scanning pages based on the devices that have been added.
- 3. Scan all the devices for the system.
- 4. A power line scan can detect the microinverters. However, it is recommended that microinverters be added to the system using the barcode scanning feature in the Enphase Installer App. In locations with other nearby

Step 2 of 6. Devices and Configuration Add Devices 2	o 0	Tir	() ne left	Step 2 of 6: Devices and Configuration Scan IQ Gateway
Add device count				Point your camera at QR code or barcode to scan
IQ Gəleway <u>Vlew Summary</u>	Θ	1	÷	×
IQ Gateway 1 (Primary)				Recommended for targeted scanning of barcodes.
IQ Microinverter	Ξ	0	+	Q ¥ Scanned 0/1
IQ Relay	0	0	+	Auto
IQ Battery ()		0	+	
Third Party PV Inverter 💮		0	+	C Scanning
Range Extender 🕧	e	0	+	
Next: Scan IQ Gatev	vay			Next: Scan IQ Microinverter

Enphase installations, the line scan can **poach** an incorrect serial number from a nearby site.

5. Select the phase of the IQ Battery after scanning the serial number.



**WARNING:** Avoid physical PLC scans using the button provided in the IQ Gateway.

If the IQ Battery is retrofitted to an existing site, microinverters will appear during the activation.

If you intend to install a string inverter with an IQ Battery rather than microinverters, you can add string inverter details, including the manufacturer, DC, and AC capacity.





#### Add device count

Scan IQ Gateway

Scan IQ Microinverter

Scan IQ Battery and select phase

C Edit Tivid Party PV Inventer datals  Mininfacturer Name* Fronius  SKU/* 45678   Attach Image  I Take Photo  PV Power Production  AC Capacity (XKI)* 10.0  DC Capacity (XKI)* 10.0	•	Third Party F	V Inverte	0	Time left ~35 mins
Manufacturer Name* Fronius Model Name* fronius SRG* 45678    Attach Image   PV Power Production AC Capacity (XW)* 10.0  DC Capacity (XW)* 10.0	0 1	Edit Third Party P	V inverter det	ails	
Proniss Model Name* fronius SRG# 45678   A5678	Manu	facturer Name*			199
Model Name* fronius SRG* 45678 Attach Image Take Photo PV Power Production AC Capacity (XW)* 10.0 DC Capacity (XW)* 10.0	Froni	us			· · ·
fronius SRUP 45678  Attach Image Take Photo PV Power Production AC Caposcity (kW)* 10.0 DC Dapacity (kW)* 10.0	Mode	I Name*			
SRU*           45678           Image           Image           PV Power Production           AC Capacity (VW)*           10.0           DC Capacity (VW)*           10.0	froni	JS .			
45678	SKU#				
Attach image  V Power Production  AC Capacity (kW)* 10.0  C Capacity (kW)* 10.0	4567	8			
AC Capacity (kW)* 10.0 DC Capacity (kW)* 10.0					
10.0 DC Capacity (kW)* 10.0	PV P	ower Productic	on		
DC Capacity (kW)* 10.0	PV P	ower Productio	on		
10.0	PV P AC Ca 10.0	ower Productio	on		
	PV P AC Ca 10.0	pacity (kW)*	on		
Cancel Confirm	PV P AC Ca 10.0 DC Ca 10.0	ower Productio pacity (kW)# pacity (kW)#	on		

Third-party string Inverter

NOTES:

- The app automatically selects the most common grid profile. You can change it through **Site Configuration**> **Grid profile**.
- If retrofitting an existing site, microinverters will be listed in the activation.
- For details on PV-to-storage ratios, compatible microinverters, and other aspects of system design, refer to the Enphase Energy system planning guide (available on the Enphase Website > Installers > Documentation Centre).
- For an IQ Battery with a FlexPhase system, you cannot add a single-phase battery along with a three-phase IQ Battery.

⊖ ENPHASE.

# 4.3 Site Configuration (Step 2b)

You can select the settings you want to configure from the Configuration List. The mandatory configurations are auto-selected and disabled for editing. Depending on the site you are commissioning, you may find some optional configurations in the Configuration List. The following are the details of the configurations.

Step 2 of 6: Devices and Configuration Configuration List	() Time left	Step 2 of 5. Devices and Configuration Maximum Import Limit(MIL)
Some scops are optional and can be certifigured later		Enter Maximum Import Limit
Select the settings that you want to configure installation and PV Details Maxmum import Umit(MIL) Site Notes and Pictures		Select the MIL, per phase in Amperes as defined by $$ the DNO. Typically, this is the DNO cut-out fuse rating for the site. Maximum Import Limit (A) *
		DONE
Next: Start Configuring		
Configuration List		Maximum Import Limit/ Grid

- Site Notes and Pictures: You can add notes and images of the site using the site notes feature.
  - If you select Site Notes and Pictures in the list of configurations, you can store important notes and installation images, which can be viewed later using the Enphase Installer Portal.
  - You can update the grid profile from the **Grid Profile** configuration sub-menu of the site configuration step (step 2b).

Interconnection

Capacity

• Maximum Import Limit (MIL)/Grid Interconnection Capacity: The Site Maximum Import or Grid Interconnection Limit feature helps the Enphase Energy System import or export within the specified limit and avoid tripping the grid connection fuse or breaker.

#### 4.3.1 Adding the Maximum Import Limit/Grid Interconnection Capacity

- 1. The Site Maximum Import or Grid Interconnection Limit is shown in the Enphase Installer App Site Configuration step.
- 2. The Site MIL/GIC value is sent to the IQ Gateway while provisioning the devices to the IQ Gateway.

Step 2 of 6 Devices and Configuration Grid Interconnection Capacity	() Te left Imms	< •	Step 2 of 6: Devices and Coofiguration Grid Interconnection Capacity	() Time left -27 mins
Crite Ond Nercorrection Limit Select the import limit per phase as defined by the grid provider	0	Grie defi	Gild Misconnection Limit extend d interconnection capacity <b>per phase</b> irred by grid provider	: 29 kW <mark>Edit</mark>
One Interconnection Capacity (XW) per phase 1 29				
DONE			Next: Site Notes and Pictu	res

In the United Kingdom, you can set the site MIL value as 60 A, 80 A, or 100 A. Use the Others option to choose any other value between 60 A and 100 A. For a commercial site, you can set the value up to 200 A.

NOTE: The site configuration list depends on the country and the system type you are commissioning. The Maximum Import Limit/ Grid Interconnection Capacity is a mandatory input for an Enphase Energy System and installer is recommended to keep the information handy before starting commissioning.

# 4.4 IQ Gateway Connectivity (Step 3)

Step 3 brings up a screen that displays the connectivity status between the IQ Gateway, the Enphase Cloud, and your smart device running the Enphase Installer App.

- At the end of the site configuration, tap Next Step: IQ Gateway Connectivity to start the pre-connectivity check for IQ Gateway.
- The Enphase Installer App performs an automated check at this step to ensure all relevant permissions from the device are received. If any error is shown, tap Resolve against the error to provide permission/resolve the error
- After the pre-connectivity check is complete, tap Connect to IQ Gateway to reach the IQ Gateway connectivity page.
- Select the IQ Gateway to connect to and tap Connect to XXXX. If you commission a site of only one IQ Gateway, the IQ Gateway will be auto-selected.
- Configure Wi-Fi. If it was not configured earlier, select the Wi-Fi network you want to connect to and enter its password.
- If a gateway update is shown, perform the IQ Gateway update process.
- After all mandatory steps are completed for the step, you will be shown the option to start provisioning by tapping **Next Step: Provisioning**.



Step 2 of 6: Connectivity C Pre Connectivity Check (2) Time eff -27 mins	Step 3 of 6: ConnectMity Connect Mobile Device to IQ Gateway Time left	Steel 316 Connective Connect (Q Gateway to Internet Connect (Q	Step 3 of 6: Connectivity Connect IQ Gateway to Internet Time left
<ul> <li>Ensure following permissions are provided Learn More</li> <li>Instructions</li> <li>Turn on IQ Gateway AP mode</li> <li>Ensure mobile device is close to IQ Gateway</li> <li>Additional Settings</li> <li>✓ Location access</li> </ul>	Image: The standard start of the s		Checking for software update
✓ Local network access     Mobile WrFi     Mobile Bluetcoth	Select the IQ Gateway and connect IQ Gateway Provisioned Validated © 202315085415 ① O	Connect galeway to Enonase cloud vie.	Connect gateway to Enphase cloud via:
		Connect galeway to home Wi-Filnetwork Wi-FilNetwork	Disconnect from ID Gateway.
Next: Connect to IQ Gateway	Next: Connect to 205415	Fassword	Next step: Provisioning
Pre Connectivity Check	IQ Gateway connectivity page	Wi-Fi configuration	Mobile connected to IQ Gateway in AP mode



**NOTE**: You can open help for the step by tapping the (?) icon at the top right of the app. On the Gateway Connectivity page, you can start/stop the remote gateway connection and use the diagnostic tools to check connectivity status.

# 4.5 Device Provisioning (Step 4)

The Enphase Installer App performs the following pre-provisioning check before opening the provisioning screen:

- Installer certification: If the installer is certified to commission the system.
- IQ Gateway version: If IQ Gateway software satisfies the minimum version required.
- Device scanning: To check if any serial number of the device has not been scanned.

Before provisioning:

- Ensure the Communications Kit is plugged into the left USB port of the IQ Gateway.
- Ensure the Enphase Mobile Connect cellular modem is plugged into the correct port of the IQ Gateway (for a backup system). This is not mandatory for a grid-tied storage system.
- For a third-generation system, ensure the CTRL headers are correctly installed. For best practices regarding CTRL cable, refer to the wiring section of the IQ Battery 5P quick installation guide.

To start provisioning:

- Press Next: Start Provisioning. The process will run the following steps automatically:
  - ✓ Update grid profile
  - ✓ Update tariff
  - ✓ Provision microinverters
  - ✓ Provision IQ Battery





After the provisioning is complete, press the **Next step: Validation**.

**NOTE**: If you commission the IQ Battery 3T/10T and the IQ Batteries are not communicating with the IQ Gateway, power cycle the batteries by following the instructions mentioned in Appendix 8.3.

# 4.6 Validation (Step 5)

Complete the validation step to check if the installation is done correctly. The validation step has the following sub-steps.

#### 4.6.1 IQ Relay validation

IQ Relay validation is used for a site where a single-phase IQ Relay/Q Relay is installed and provisioned.

The different status of IQ Relay validation:

- Validated: The IQ relay is operating; that is, the relay is closed.
- If the IQ Relay's status is open, that is, in a faulty state, the Enphase Installer App will guide you through configuring it.

#### 4.6.1.1 Configuring the IQ Relay

In the Enphase Installer App, select the phase of the grid connection.

- 1Phase
- 2 Phase
- 3 Phase

You will be guided on configuring the IQ Relay based on the selection.



#### 4.6.2 Meter configuration

#### 4.6.2.1 Production Meter

Perform the following instructions on the screen. The app checks if the production meter readings are positive when producing PVs. Production readings are reduced to zero when PV breakers are turned off.

- Select the correct phase for installing the microinverter branches. Ensure the PV breaker is turned ON and the microinverters are connected to the AC utility grid. Tap Next: Set up Production Meter.
- 2. Power off the PV Breaker.
- 3. Wait for the PV to curtail the production, and the app detects no production. Tap **Next: Enable Production Meter** to enable production meter.



**NOTE:** The IQ Microinverters are only powered by the DC supply of the individual solar panels.





#### 4.6.2.2 Consumption Meter

Verify that the configuration matches the installation, i.e., that phase selection and the location of the meter are entered correctly.

- 1. Turn on a known load. Tap **Next: Validate Import from Grid**. Check and confirm the wiring of the IQ Gateway.
- 2. Switch on the PV breaker to reduce the net import from the grid. Tap **Next: Enable Consumption Meter** to enable the meter.







**NOTE**: Enabling the consumption meter ensures the successful configuration of the EnFLuRI sensor. The installer can download the certificate of conformity from the Enphase Documentation Center.

#### 4.6.3 IQ Battery Phase Validation (If applicable)

The Enphase Installer App automatically checks if the wiring of the IQ Battery and IQ System Controller (in case of backup configuration) is correct. If any wiring issues are detected, the installer will be shown an error message along with instructions on how to fix the error.



#### 4.6.4 Functional validation

The Enphase Installer App checks if the battery performs charging and discharging activities successfully.

Follow the on-screen instructions to complete the functional validation.

- 1. Turn on the load and confirm that the battery is discharging.
- 2. Turn on the PV circuit breakers.
- 3. Turn off the loads to ensure that production exceeds consumption.
- 4. Wait for the microinverters to reconnect (30 seconds to 5 minutes, depending on the grid profile).
- 5. Turn off the known load and confirm that the batteries are charging using the Live Status interface and LED indicators on each battery.
- 6. Your system is now functionally validated.



**NOTE**: Charging up to 100% state of charge is critical to ensure that the state of charge reported by the system is accurate.





## 4.6.5 Permit to operate instruction

You will be shown a screen where you can indicate whether a permit to operate (PTO) has been received for the system. Select **Yes** or **No** based on whether PTO has been received. If PTO is yet to be received, the Enphase Installer App will show additional instructions on mandatory steps before leaving the sites.





#### 4.6.6 Summary report

The summary report shows essential information about the system, including system details, device serial number, status, and grid profile.

You can share this report by email or AirDrop. It contains details of each provisioned device and the system's commissioned status.

•	-	•			-6	)—0 🚆
Share or c	lownices	l report				
101.11			- I	hind has	ed m	
IQ Galena						
Selatanter		Services	-		TN	
		20.000	66)		- 24	ng Girlense
Fundamier Mar		Country	e Mair			Distance
Here Manual Kong Kernal	a .	Library U.S.	11.00 (Dap	n o		Disprint
Carrier to P.		Inter	and Parala		1044	Tour d'a
No.		If the N	N IDA IN		1040	BUCK AVIEND
e	12 Mar. 302	4.117.4M	(w	26		55600.54664602
A	12 Not 302	4.117.4M	1.4	20		551-00.5-m-2018012
	11.00-001	6114734	1.5	w.		CLYTCHEADER?
	- atear		1.2	1.4		District a source
	I		1 mar	Louis		in and the
STUTIEST	Linespo	4 11249	100	10001	124.6	Charles Parties
	1116-20	LILLTAN.	15	6		211300-de-004112
6 - 14 -	1: No 20	610274N		in.		21030-06-00002
	and states					
A Distantion	heren		In	low	-	Donese tentes
()) Humirele Settingunger	11 Mar 202	ALL PAN	1.4	10		210000-m-20842
(1) Handeric Serbite actor		6.03249		90°		556-000-06-0000001
- Al Municett Serbite anter	11 562 503		1.14	5		Ph/0000estate
Al Hankes Selel a siler	11 502 503	press.	1			
Sele La miler Sele La miler Adrese 10 200 Descrio	11 542 565	press.	1			and the second se
<ul> <li>(a) Hamilton</li> <li>Seriel a serier</li> <li>(b) verse (b)</li> <li>(b) Generics</li> <li>(b) Generics</li> <li>(b) Generics</li> </ul>	P stores	ETC24	5.40 A 1.54		1.0	Reamon Product
City Manusco Seriel and lar City and City City Detection Sector contine	I Ser Ser If ser Ser	(1173A)	Sava ca	<b>1</b> 1	in in LFAI	Alexandro Persian Alexandro Alexandro
<ul> <li>(2) Manusch</li> <li>Serbilmenter</li> <li>(0) von 10</li> <li>(2) Gescric</li> <li>(3) Gescric</li> <li>(4) Austine</li> </ul>	Cancel Concel Concel	nuine nuine	State of Char 1985) 1985		Man LEAL LON	Paraman Paralah DARANG yabih h Tanàng yabih h
<ul> <li>A Manipust</li> <li>Sector a matter</li> <li>Compared D</li> <li>Compared D<!--</td--><td>Galacian Company Company</td><td>nuine nuine</td><td>9040 H Che 1855 1865</td><td></td><td>19600 1974 12010</td><td>Recence Perdect 20002 (v0011) Teodo(v0011)</td></li></ul>	Galacian Company Company	nuine nuine	9040 H Che 1855 1865		19600 1974 12010	Recence Perdect 20002 (v0011) Teodo(v0011)
<ul> <li>A Manifesti Sector and the activation</li> <li>A Description</li> <li>A Description</li> </ul>	11 Mar Se 11 Mar Se 11 Mar Se 12 Marchae Common	naitee Indiae	540 A Ca (85) 185	e Kalen	Diana LEAD LEAD	Anterna Ferdini 20002 (2011) Technyol 11 (1 Generated by Intellier Technyol 11 (1)
<ul> <li>Al Manifesti</li> <li>Sector menter</li> <li>Al Anno 199</li> <li>Constanting</li> <li>Constanting</li> <li>Description</li> </ul>	41 Mar Set 14 Mar Set 64.16 Country Country	uine nine	9 30	<b>9</b>	Mars CFA2 1201	decrease Section 20092 (4911) Trickley (411) (1 Generated Section Rev Generated Section Rev Generated Section Rev Generated Section Rev Section Rev Generated Section Rev Genera
3) Huniero Geli Inniero Jorgen 10 30 Gescrito Into Autor	1 AL SC 11 A	naine naine	0.30 (8%) (8%) (8%)	(e) (c)	2000 1992 1992	Finance Period Designation Teaching of the Generation Sector Teaching Generation Sector Teaching Sector Sector Sector Teaching Sector Sector S

# 4.7 Post Commissioning (Step 6)

Provide the homeowner a walkthrough and access, set the tariff, and change the IQ Battery operating modes. Your device must be connected to the internet to complete these steps

#### 4.7.1 Homeowner walkthrough

Verify each item on the checklist with the homeowner.

- Check all the tick boxes to acknowledge that you have communicated this information to the homeowner.
- Tap **Confirm** to complete this step and proceed to the next.

#### 4.7.2 Access to the homeowner

Tap Yes to provide homeowner access to the system.



## 4.7.3 Electricity rate structure

There are two tariff settings in the Electricity Rate Structure feature.

- Electricity Import Rate
- Electricity Export Rate
  - Follow the prompts to set up the Import Rate.
  - $\circ$  Check the tariff structure with the customer and enter the information accordingly.
  - Check Add Electricity Export Rate.

## 4.7.4 Profile

You can choose the system profile in the Profile menu.

## 4.7.5 Battery

You can select the battery-related settings in the Battery menu.

# 5 Commissioning instructions for backup storage configuration



**NOTE**: Some instructions or the following steps may only be applicable for system commissioning in some geographies and not applicable to other geographies.

# 5.1 System Details (Step 1)

Follow the steps outlined in the <u>System Details</u> section to complete this step.

Add the following additional details, if applicable, for the geography you are commissioning:

• National Meter Identifier (Applicable for Australia)



**NOTE:** For details on PV-to-storage ratios, compatible microinverters, and other aspects of system design, refer to the **Enphase website > Installers > Documentation Centre > Storage > Planning Guide**.

# 5.2 Devices and Configuration (Step 2a)

Follow the steps outlined in the <u>Device and Configuration</u> section to complete this step. Perform the following steps in addition to the preceding steps:

- 1. Add the IQ System Controller count to the device count screen.
- 2. Scan the IQ System Controller, as shown in the following image. IQ Battery is only allowed on phase A (L1-N).







#### NOTE:

- Scan the IQ Gateway using the QR code on the top right of the IQ System Controller and select the appropriate grid profile for the system.
- If you commission a backup configuration in South Africa, you will need at least two IQ Battery 5Ps to commission the Enphase Energy System successfully.



# 5.3 Site Configuration (Step 2b)

The Configuration List allows you to select the settings to configure. The mandatory configurations are auto-selected and disabled for editing. Depending on the site you are commissioning, you may find some optional configurations in the Configuration List.

The following are the details of the configurations.

- Installation and PV Details: This configuration updates the permit and PV module-related details.
- Auxiliary Contact Configuration

- 1. In the site configuration screen, select the Auxiliary contact needing configuration and all the contacts you want to configure.
- 2. Configure each contact by entering the required details and Smart control for each contact.



#### • Configuring IO1 for third-party string inverter

- You can add a third-party string inverter to an Enphase Energy System in a backup configuration.
- The breaker in the third-party string inverter must be wired to the IO1 of the IQ System Controller.
- Based on the IQ Battery and third-party string inverter rating, the Enphase Installer App will provide one or two options, i.e., Basic mode or Advanced mode.
  - Basic mode The string inverter will be powered off when the system is off-grid
  - Advanced mode The string inverter will be powered off in the off-grid mode if the IQ Battery charge level increases more than the upper threshold and will be powered on if the IQ Battery charge level decreases below the lower threshold. The installer can change the threshold level.



- Site Notes and Pictures: You can add notes and images of the site using the site notes feature.
  - If you select **Site Notes and Pictures** in the list of configurations, you can store important notes and installation images, which can be viewed later using the Enphase Installer Portal.
  - You can update the grid profile from the Grid Profile configuration sub-menu of the site <u>Configuration step (Step 2b)</u>.

Step 2 of 6: Devices and Configuration Configuration List	① Time left ~27 mins	Step 7 of 6 Devices and Configuration Cinstallation and PV Details	Time left ~29 mins
<ul> <li>Some steps are optional and can be configured</li> </ul>	later	Add installation and PV details	
Select the settings that you want to configur	e	PV Module	
Installation and PV Details		Manufacturer *	~
Auxiliary Contact	O	9	2
01 02		Model 4	~
03 04			
Site Notes and Pictures		Type of Module *	*
		Module Power Rating (in W) *	
Next: Start Configuring		Next: Maximum Import L	Limit(MIL)
Configuration L	ist	Installation a	nd PV
		Details	5

## 5.4 IQ Gateway Connectivity (Step 3)

- Follow the steps outlined in the IQ Gateway Connectivity step. 1.
- 2. Adding a cellular modem is mandatory for an Enphase Energy System in backup configuration.

## 5.5 Device Provisioning (Step 4)

Follow the steps outlined in the Device Provisioning step. In addition to other devices added, the IQ System Controller will be provisioned as part of this step for backup configuration.

## 5.6 Validation (Step 5)

#### 5.6.1 Meter configuration

5.6.1.1 Production Meter

Follow the steps outlined in the Production Meter step.

location

#### 5.6.1.2 Consumption Meter

- 1. Verify that the configuration matches what is installed, and the number of phases connected to the system.
- 2. Enable the meters by verifying the readings through the meter wizard.
- 3. Switch off all PV breakers (microgrid and non-microgrid) as instructed to ensure the readings go to zero before enabling.
- 4. While in the consumption meter wizard, turn on the PV and a known load in the home to confirm consumption rises as expected.



**NOTE:** The Consumption CT should be installed on the grid side.



reading has increased

C



#### 5.6.2 Auxiliary contact validation

After completing meter validation, you will be guided to the **Auxiliary Contact Validation**.

- 1. Tap each contact to validate it.
- 2. Tap **Yes** to turn off the load contact.
- 3. Verify if the contact is turned off.
- 4. Continue the validation for all IO contacts.



NOTE: The auxiliary contact can be revalidated if any settings are changed on-site.

#### 5.6.3 IQ Battery Phase validation

The Enphase Installer App automatically checks if the wiring of the IQ Battery and IQ System Controller is correct. If any wiring issues are detected, the installer will be shown an error message along with instructions on how to fix the error. For more information, refer to <u>IQ Battery</u> <u>Phase Validation (If applicable)</u> section.

#### 5.6.4 Functional validation

A functional validation precheck is performed before the start of the functional validation to ensure the Enphase system is ready to go off-grid. Resolve any issues highlighted to complete this step. Tap Start Functional Validation when all prechecks are passed.

Functional validation includes six sub-steps, and you must confirm the condition of each step to proceed to the next step.

- 1. Ensure an active load is in the backup circuit.
- 2. Ensure the Load is under the installed IQ Battery capacity, then tap the **Next: Go OffGrid** button. Wait approximately 45 seconds for the microgrid interconnect device (MID) to open. You will hear a click when this occurs.
- 3. Confirm that the system is now off-grid and that backup loads remain powered. Turn on additional backup loads and confirm that the consumption value has increased.
- 4. Tap the **Next: Go On-Grid** toggle and wait for the MID to resync to the grid. You will hear a click when this occurs.
- 5. You will be shown a success message if the transition is successful.



#### NOTE:

- The Enphase Installer App will automatically change the IQ Battery mode to Full Backup to bring the state of charge to 100%.
- Charging up to 100% state of charge is critical to ensure that the state of charge reported by the system is accurate.





#### 5.6.5 Summary report

Follow the steps outlined in the <u>Summary report</u> step.

# 5.7 Post Commissioning (Step 6)

Follow the steps outlined in the Post Commissioning (Step 6).

# 6 Commissioning IQ Energy Router

This section is intended for Enphase-certified installers who commission the Enphase Energy System with IQ Energy Router to monitor and control IQ Energy Router peripherals like Heat Pump and EV charger.

Follow the steps below to establish successful communication between the IQ Energy Router, EV charger, heat pumps, and IQ Gateway.

# 6.1 Applicable countries

- Germany
- The Netherlands
- Switzerland
- Austria
- Belgium

## 6.2 Pre-commissioning process

EV chargers, heat pumps, and the Home Energy Management hardware components must be installed and configured before pairing and commissioning the IQ Energy Router.

Refer to these regional web pages to learn more about installing and configuring the supported EV Chargers and heat pump models. The IQ Energy Router can only pair with a third-party EV charger and heat pump after these devices are configured.

- o <u>Germany</u>
- o <u>The Netherlands</u>
- o <u>Switzerland</u>
- o <u>Austria</u>
- o Belgium

## 6.3 Commissioning process

- 1) Device and configuration:
  - a) You can add the IQ Energy Router count in the **Add Devices** screen. Each site can add a maximum of one IQ Energy Router.
  - b) Add devices like a Heat pump and an EV charger to the IQ Energy Router.
  - c) Scan/Enter the IQ Energy Router serial number manually (mentioned as Hub ID at the bottom). Ensure you are connected to the internet to complete this step.



- 2) IQ Energy Router connectivity:
  - a) Set up the IQ Energy Router and connect it to the internet using the Ethernet cable.
  - b) Complete the commissioning of the Enphase Energy System. In the Summary report, tap **Next step: Connect to IQ Energy Router**.
  - c) Configure the IQ Energy Router peripherals, such as the heat pump and EV charger, at the site.

Step 5 of 6: Validation Summary Report	() Time isti 6 mine	Slep 3 of 6 ConnectIve Slep 4	4 of 6. Provision Visioning IQ Energy Router (7) Time teh -5 mins
Share or download report	-	Please connect your mobile device to internet     O Device	is provisioned successfully. Move to next step
Interestions State Solid And Mark Mark 199 Interesting Solid And Mark Mark Mark 199 Interesting Solid And Mark Mark 199 Interesting Solid And And And And And And And And And An	Set         1004880x01+FL000           Noting         ShareeCv1.are(3x)           Set         ShareeCv1.are(3x)	Heat Pun Details mit	np ssing <u>Add Detail</u>
Senatemanden State State	Plan Paulous Vision	DTP-512	
W200800 Crawmen Pr	LS.8 2000 (42.7		
1 KQ Roley			
Residence .	Last separa		
12 8012500	36 Gar 523 49 17 194		
10 Easing Restor	destruction of the second s	IQ Energy Router Connection Status	
Sector Reaction (All March	In the American		
MINE.	Facility		
Francisco Constantino Francisco Francisco	Value		
No. on the	8.85 m		
	di contra di c		
Los of Pone Dyrades	1		
Family	Value		
Los africas desertos en felo	bs -		
Caller Brighting and go Bright	12		
Farmenter	Value		
Denois	206		
Take reports date like stabled			
A strap of a star strategy			
the second se	100		
and the second second	18-315		
Parements	3. N 10		
Formation lines	3. Kom		
Salate	3.5 m		
Anilogram	anne .		
Next step: Connect to	IQ Energy Router	Next step: Provision IQ Energy Router	Next step: Validation
O Geleway: 1220	12120249		





- 3) Provision IQ Energy Router:
  - a) Tap on **Next step: Provision IQ Energy Router** to complete the provisioning of the IQ Energy Router.
  - b) Enter the details of the peripherals if not entered earlier.
- 4) Validation:
  - a) Tap **Next step: Validation** to complete the authorization and activation of the peripherals. Once the IQ Energy Router is activated, proceed to complete the validation of the associated heat pump and EV charger.



© 2025 Enphase Energy Inc. All rights reserved.

#### b) EV charger validation

- i) Verify prerequisites: Ensure IQ Energy Router activation is complete, and confirm that both IQ Energy Router and EV charger are online. Confirm that the EV charger connector is unplugged.
- ii) Start validation: Plug in the EV charger to initiate automated validation, including start and stop charging sequences.
- iii) Complete validation: After successful validation, unplug the charger and proceed with the next steps.



#### c) Heat pump validation

- i) Verify prerequisites: Ensure site activation is complete, and the IQ Energy Router is online. Select either Automated Validation (recommended) or Manual Validation.
- Automated Validation: Based on initial conditions, the system will automatically initiate the process by setting SG-Ready Mode 4 (definite start mode) to validate an increase in meter readings, or Mode 1 (hard block, similar to a utility block) to validate a decrease in readings. At the end of validation, the system will be to set SG-Ready Mode 2 (normal operation).

12:30 The start Heat Pump Pre-Validation Check 4 Heat Pump Pre-Validation Check 5 Time left 33 mins	12:30 The state of	12:30 Step 5 of 6: Validation Keat Pump 3 Step 5 of 6: Validation 3 Step 5 of 6:
<ul> <li>IQ Energy Router status</li> <li>SG Ready Relay status</li> <li>Energy Meter status</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>IQ Energy Router status</li> <li>SG Ready Relay status</li> <li>Energy Meter status</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Meter reading 1 120W</li> <li>SG Ready Relay mode set in validation Mode 4</li> <li>SG Ready Relay mode after validation Mode 2</li> <li>SG Ready Relay status Validated</li> <li>Energy Meter status Validated</li> <li>Learn more about validation</li> </ul>
Next: Start Heat Pump Validation	Validation type  Automated Validation Recommended Manual validation Cancel Start	Next step: Post Commissioning

- iii) For unsupported heat pumps, proceed with Manual validation:
  - Before starting validation, manually check that the compressor is off. If it is running, use the heat pump's ON and OFF buttons to turn it off.
  - Once the compressor status is confirmed, you can send the SG-Ready command to increase operation (Mode 3).
  - Validate the heat pump's functionality by checking the meter readings after sending the command.
  - Finally, the system must be transitioned to Mode 2 (normal operation) and confirmed in the validation confirmation report to complete the validation.





# 7 Commissioning IQ EV Charger

## 7.1 Commissioning process

- Add IQ EV Charger from the Add Devices screen.
- Ensure you are connected to the internet to complete the scanning and configuration of the IQ EV Chargers.
- Scan or enter the IQ EV Charger serial number, connect to Bluetooth to configure its Wi-Fi connectivity, and complete the provisioning process.



# 8 IQ Gateway upgrade process

ENPHASE.

To start the IQ Gateway upgrade process, connect to the IQ Gateway using the AP mode. The Enphase Installer App will recommend a mandatory IQ Gateway upgrade for the system's functioning.

- 1. Tap Next: Update IQ Gateway software to start the update process.
- 2. The phone automatically disconnects after the packages are applied, and the IQ Gateway will undergo multiple restarts.
- 3. Reconnect to IQ Gateway when the LEDs on the IQ Gateway are solid green for 10 seconds.
- 4. Verify the IQ Gateway software to confirm if the update happened successfully. You will be shown the button to start provisioning.





# 8.1 Different states of IQ Battery

#### 2<sup>nd</sup>-generation IQ Battery:

STATE	DESCRIPTION			
UNCOMMISSIONED				
Flashing blue	After booting up, IQ Battery 5P has paired with an IQ Gateway but has not passed the commissioning three-way handshake to confirm that it is an Enphase device			
Flashing green	After passing the three-way handshake with the IQ Gateway			
AFTER COMMISSIONING (NORMAL OPERATION)				
Rapidly flashing yellow	Starting up/establishing communications			
Red double flash	Error. See "Troubleshooting"			
Solid yellow	Not operating due to high temperature. See "Troubleshooting"			
Solid blue or green	Idle. Color transitions from blue to green as state of charge increases. Check Enphase installer Platform for charge status			
Soft pulse blue	Discharging			
Soft pulse green	Charging			
Soft pulse yellow	Sleep mode			
Red triple flashes	DC switch OFF			
Red one-second flash	RapId Shutdown mode			
Off	Not operating. See "Troubleshooting"			

## 3<sup>rd</sup>-generation IQ Battery:

STATE	DESCRIPTION
UNCOMMISSIONED	
Flashing blue	After booting up, IQ Battery 5P has paired with an IQ Gateway but has not passed the commissioning three-way handshake to confirm that it is an Enphase device
Flashing green	After passing the three-way handshake with the IQ Gateway
AFTER COMMISSIONING (NO	ORMAL OPERATION)
Rapidly flashing yellow	Starting up/establishing communications
Red double flash	Error. See "Troubleshooting"
Solid yellow	Not operating due to high temperature. See "Troubleshooting"
Solid blue or green	Idle. Color transitions from blue to green as the state of charge increases. Check Enphase Installer Platform for charge status
Soft pulse blue	Discharging
Soft pulse green	Charging
Soft pulse yellow	Sleep mode
Red triple flashes	DC switch OFF
Off	Not operating. See "Troubleshooting"

## 8.2 Replacing an IQ Gateway onsite

Refer to the "Replace IQ Gateway" section in the Self-service return and replacement technical brief.

# 8.3 Replacing an IQ Battery onsite

Refer to the "Replace IQ System Controller and IQ Batteries" section in the <u>Self-service return and</u> replacement technical brief.

# 9 Appendix

# 9.1 Appendix A: PLC Noise Detection

You can now monitor the quality of power line communication between IQ Gateway and the microinverters. The PLC Noise Detection feature provides real-time data on the noise detected when communicating with IQ Gateway.

Step 2 of 6: Devices and Configuration C IQ Gateway details	0	2. Devices and Configuration	() Time Left
• • • • • •	O ∼5 mins	• (2)	60 mins
O IQ Gateway status is normal		Scan IQ Microinverter	
Lifetime	15.6 MWh		High
Consumption		2 -100 M	ledium
Today	65.7 kWh		Low
Lifetime	24.3 MWh		<b>The second second</b>
Grid Profile	>	-200	ilaan
VDE AR-N-4105:2018 Germany, PEL disabled,	UE (1.2.1)	ed to the second	<b>HUMA</b>
Powerline Scan (Auto)	Scan		
Use this to discover IQ Microinverters, IQ Rela batteries. Should not be used for scanning in gateway system.	ys and AC a multi-	0 40 80 120 160 20 Prequency (kHz)	0 240
It is available in the AP mode		The frequency range used for powerline	irs and
Powerline Communications Noise Detection	5	Envoy-S is between 105 kHz to 115 kHz	io una
It is available in the AP mode		The power (dBm) for different frequency detect shall be interpreted as below:	tion
Power Limiting	>	<ol> <li>Noise is <b>High</b> if the value is greater than -75 We recommend the use of Line Filter</li> <li>Noise is <b>Medium</b> if the value is between -75.</li> </ol>	dBm. dBm
Power Production Limiting		and -125 dBm 3. Noise is Low if the value is less than -125 dB	lm

# 9.2 Appendix B: Replacing/Decommissioning

For the replacement/decommissioning of the IQ System Controller and IQ Battery, refer to the Enphase Installer Portal self-service return and replacement technical brief.

# 9.3 Appendix C: Steps to perform a power cycle of the IQ Battery 3T/10T

Perform the following steps to power cycle the IQ Battery 3T/10T.

- 1. Turn off the IQ Battery DC switches.
- 2. Turn off the IQ Battery AC Breaker feeding.
- 3. Wait for five minutes.
- 4. Turn on the AC breaker feeding.
- 5. Verify the flashing red light in the IQ Battery for three seconds.
- 6. Wait for two minutes.
- 7. Turn on the IQ Battery DC switches.

# 10 Revision history

Revision	Date	Description
TEB-00015-6.0 January 2025		Updated IQ Energy Router commissioning process and added
		IQEV Charger commissioning details.
TEB-00015-5.0	October 2024	Added Romania and Czech Republic regions to the non-backup
		configuration list.
TEB-00015-4.0	August 2024	Added the "Auxiliary Contact Validation" section.
		Added Auxiliary contact configuration information under Site
		Configuration (step 2b) of the "Commissioning instructions for
		backup storage configuration" section.
		• Added Austria and Belgium as applicable countries under the
		"Commissioning IQ Energy Router" section.
TEB-00015-3.0	February 2024	Updated the "Site Maximum Import or Grid Interconnection Limit"
	,,,	section.
TEB-00015-2.0	October 2023	Enphase Installer App 3.33.0 release updates.
122 00010 2.0	000000 2020	
TEB-00015-1.0	May 2023	Initial release.

©2025 Enphase Energy. All rights reserved. Enphase, the e and CC logos, IQ, and certain other marks listed at <a href="https://enphase.com/trademark-usage-guidelines">https://enphase.com/trademark-usage-guidelines</a> are trademarks of Enphase Energy, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries. Data subject to change.